
Licensing Sub-Committee

Date: Thursday, 28th March, 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath

Councillors: Les Kew, Rob Appleyard and Deirdre Horstmann

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

A briefing session for Members will be held at 9.30am in the room where the meeting is to take 
place.

Sean O'Neill
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG 
Telephone: 01225 395090
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk 
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk



NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Public Access points:- Reception: Civic 
Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies - Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and 
Midsomer Norton public libraries.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by 
contacting as above. 

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording 
by anyone attending a meeting.  This is not within the Council’s control.  Some of our meetings 
are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is to 
be filmed.  If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please make yourself known to 
the camera operators.  We request that those filming/recording meetings avoid filming public 
seating areas, children, vulnerable people etc; however, the Council cannot guarantee this will 
happen.

The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its 
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings. 
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also 
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a 
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days 
before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be 
received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. Further details of the 
scheme:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated 
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted. 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505


Licensing Sub-Committee - Thursday, 28th March, 2019

at 10.00 am in the Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath

A G E N D A

1.  EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under 
Note 5 on the previous page.

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

4.  TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

5.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 1ST MARCH 2019 (Pages 5 - 18)

6.  LICENSING PROCEDURE (Pages 19 - 22)

The Chair will, if required, explain the licensing procedure.

7.  APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE BIG SAM JAM, EVENT 
FIELD, WOODBOROUGH MILL BARN, WOOLLARD BS39 4JT (Pages 23 - 74)

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on 
01225 395090.





BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

Page 1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Friday, 1st March, 2019, 10.00 am

Councillors: Les Kew (Chair), Dine Romero (in place of Rob Appleyard) and 
Deirdre Horstmann
 
Officers in attendance: John Dowding (Senior Public Protection Officer), Michael Dando 
(Senior Public Protection Officer) and Shaine Lewis (Team Leader Resources - Legal 
Team)

57   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Democratic Services Officer advised the meeting of the procedure.

58   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Councillor Rob Appleyard sent his apologies to the Sub-Committee, Councillor Dine 
Romero was present for the duration of the meeting as his substitute. 

59   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

60   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

There was none.

61   MINUTES: 31 JANUARY 2019 

The Sub-Committee confirmed the minutes of the previous meeting as a true record 
and they were duly signed by the Chairman.

62   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

Having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served by not 
disclosing relevant information, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that 
the public should be excluded from the meeting for agenda items 8 and 9 and that 
the reporting of this part of the meeting be prevented under Section 100A(5A), 
because of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 
and 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended.

63   TAXI DRIVER LICENCE RENEWAL/APPLICATION PROCEDURE 

The Chairman explained the procedure to be followed for the next item of business.

64   APPLICATION TO RENEW COMBINED HACKNEY CARRIAGE /PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVERS LICENCE AND CONSIDERATION OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND 
FIT AND PROPER STATUS - 16/00518/TAXI 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 5

The applicant was present and accompanied by Reuben Chatterjee (SARI, Stand 
Against Racism & Inequality) and confirmed that he understood the procedure to be 
followed for the hearing.

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report to the Sub-Committee.

Reuben Chatterjee submitted an additional supporting letter on behalf of the 
applicant. The hearing was adjourned to allow Members time to study the letter. It 
stated that the applicant no longer works near the Bath Spa train station and that no 
complaints have been made against him for around a year.

After the hearing had been reconvened, the applicant stated his case and was 
questioned by Members.

Following a further adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that the applicant 
was not a fit and proper person to hold a combined Private Hire/Hackney Carriage 
Driver’s Licence.

Reasons

Members have had to consider the renewal of a combined Hackney Carriage/Private 
Hire Driver’s licence against the background of complaints calling in to question 
whether the applicant continues to be a fit and proper person to hold a licence. In 
determining the matter Members had regard to the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the 
Council’s Policy. 

In reaching a decision Members considered the applicant’s oral and written 
representations. Members noted that when discussing the incidents today the 
applicant’s recollections were more detailed than the accounts given in the complaint 
interviews taken shortly after the incidents occurred. Moreover, incidents that the 
applicant said had had a significant effect on him were not recounted at that time of 
complaint or during recorded interview. 

In all the circumstances therefore Members do not find the applicant a credible, 
reliable or compelling witness and found his accounts inconsistent and at times 
fanciful. Having given confusing and conflicting evidence Members therefore looked 
for objective and corroborative evidence of the sustained campaign of intimidation 
against him alleged. Whilst Members noted the complainants had not attended to 
give evidence they found the accounts credible, consistent and when taken together 
with the mobile phone footage objective and compelling. 

Members therefore find that, whilst the applicant portrayed himself as the victim, his 
behaviour over a sustained period was provocative, aggressive and at times racist. 
Members further found that on occasions the applicant was the aggressor, had 
alighted from his vehicle to initiate confrontation and at times this behaviour was in 
the presence of the travelling public.

Members considered that the behaviour demonstrated by the applicant is not that to 
be expected from a licensed driver and find on the balance of probabilities that, at 
this point in time, the applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold a combine 

Page 6



Page 3 of 5

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence. Accordingly the application is 
refused. 

65   APPLICATION TO RENEW COMBINED HACKNEY CARRIAGE /PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVERS LICENCE 19/00665/TAXI 

The applicant was present with his wife and confirmed that he understood the 
procedure to be followed for the hearing. 

The Senior Public Protection Officer presented the report and provided Members 
with copies of a letter from the applicant’s GP. The hearing was adjourned to allow 
Members time to study the letter.

After the hearing had been reconvened, the applicant stated his case and was 
questioned by Members.

Following a further adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that the applicant 
was a fit and proper person to hold a combined Private Hire/Hackney Carriage 
Driver’s Licence and that authority is delegated to the licencing officer to issue the 
licence.

Reasons

Members have had to consider the renewal of a combined Hackney Carriage/Private 
Hire Driver’s licence and determine whether the applicant continues to be a fit and 
proper person to hold such a licence in light of a medical report received. In doing so 
Members have had regard to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.

The applicant stated when the medical form was completed the locum Dr based the 
answers on information from the hospital that was 5 years old. Since that time further 
investigations were carried out and his consultant had stated the applicant’s fatty 
liver was of no concern. In terms of alcohol consumption the applicant stated he is 
limiting his drinking and whilst he may have a drink in the evenings he does not look 
for a drink or have a problem with alcohol. 

Members noted the applicant has been a licenced driver since September 1998 and 
his medical records appeared somewhat out of date. Members therefore took 
account of a letter from his GP, the applicant’s explanation as to his alcohol 
consumption and whilst noting the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency Group 2 
(Vocational) Medical Certificate Members accept it was produced by a locum Dr 
based on out dated medical records. 

In all the circumstances Members believe the certificate to be a genuine mistake and 
find the applicant a fit and proper person to hold a combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Vehicle Drivers licence. Authority is delegated to issue the 
licence.  
 

66   RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

Page 7



Page 4 of 5

67   TAXI VEHICLE PROCEDURE 

The Chairman explained the procedure to be followed for the next item of business.

68   CONSIDERATION OF VEHICLE SUITABILITY TO BE LICENSED AS A PRIVATE 
HIRE VEHICLE – 1900369PHVL 

The applicant was present and confirmed that he understood the procedure to be 
followed for the hearing.

Members adjourned the meeting to conduct an inspection of the vehicle.

After the hearing had been reconvened, the Senior Public Protection Officer 
presented the report. Members noted that while the Council’s current policy on 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Standards – Vehicles, Drivers and 
Operators state that “all vehicles will normally be less than four years old when first 
licensed” the applicant’s vehicle was more than four years and four months old at the 
date of application. 

The applicant stated his case and was questioned by Members.

Following a further adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that the vehicle 
was suitable to be licensed as private hire vehicle and delegated authority to the 
licensing officer to issue the licence, subject to the satisfactory completion of all 
necessary checks.

Reasons

Members have had to determine an application for a Private Hire Vehicle Licence. In 
doing so they took account of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976, Human Rights Act 1998, the Council’s Policy and the applicant’s oral 
representations. Members also had the benefit of an inspection of the vehicle.  

The officer stated that having viewed the vehicle there was an issue with the rear 
bumper that would need repairing if it were a licenced vehicle. With regard to the 
vehicle the applicant accepted it does not meet the requirements of the council’s 
standard conditions that came into effect on 18 December 2018. He said the vehicle 
was purchased on the 18 December 2018 and with the intervening holiday period 
there was a delay in his application. He accepted the bumper needs addressing and 
would do so if the vehicle was licenced. 

Having inspected the vehicle Members found it in good condition and were satisfied 
that it was suitable in type, size and design subject to the bumper being repaired. 
Members therefore depart from the policy and grant the application.

The meeting ended at 2.05 pm

Chair(person)

Page 8



Page 5 of 5

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Document is Restricted

Page 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
LICENSING ACT 2003

 PROCEDURE FOR NEW APPLICATIONS AND VARIATIONS

The parties will be allowed an equal maximum period of time not normally exceeding 
twenty minutes. Where more than one party make representations the time should 
be split equally between them. Where several parties make similar representations 
one representative should be appointed avoiding duplication and making the best 
use of the available time

Other Parties’ case(s)
(May call witnesses)

Questions to Other Parties by other parties 
and Members

Responsible Authorities’ case

Questions to Responsible Authorities by 
other parties and Members

Other Parties sum up
Applicant sums up

Adjournment

Reconvene and announce decision with 
reasons

Introductions by Chair

Have parties received and understood 
Licensing Procedure?

Summary/update by Licensing Officer

Applicant /representative presents case
(May call witnesses)

Questions to Applicant by other parties and 
Members

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



E:\moderngov\data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\8\AI00023805\$pvr3z3hf.rtf

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
LICENSING ACT 2003

PROCEDURE FOR HEARING AN APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES 
LICENCE OR FOR A VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE

The Chair will allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to make 
representations that will not normally exceed twenty minutes.  Where more than 
one party makes relevant representations this time will be split between the parties 
and where several parties make similar representations it is suggested one 
representative is appointed to avoid duplication. 

The term “party” or “parties” will mean anyone to whom notice of this meeting has 
been given.

1. The Chair will introduce Members of the Sub-Committee, the Officers present 
and explain the procedure to be followed.

2. The Licensing Officer will outline the nature of the matter to be considered by 
the Sub-Committee.

3. (i) The Applicant/Licence Holder , or representative, addresses the Sub-
Committee who may be asked relevant questions by the other parties and 
Members.
(ii) witnesses may be called in support of the application who may be asked 
relevant questions by the other parties and Members.

4. (i) Any party making relevant representations,  or representative, will address 
the Sub-Committee who may be asked relevant questions by the Applicant, 
other parties and Members.
(ii) witnesses may be called in support of such representations who may be 
asked relevant questions by the Applicant, other parties and Members.

5. Responsible Authorities making representation will address the Committee and 
may be asked relevant questions by the Applicant, other parties and Members.

6. The other parties will be invited in turn to summarise their representations.

Responsible Authorities will be invited to summarise their representations

The Applicant/ Licence Holder will be invited to summarise the application.

8. The Chair will invite the Committee to move into private session to enable the 
Members to deliberate in private. The Committee will reconvene publicly if 
clarification of evidence is required and/or legal advice is required. The 
Committee may retire to a private room, or alternatively require vacation of the 
room by all other persons.

Whilst in deliberation the Committee will be accompanied by Legal and 
Democratic Service Officers for the purpose of assisting them in drafting their 
reasoning for the decision.

The Committee will reconvene the meeting and the Chair will announce the 
Committee’s decision with reasons and advise that the decision will be released 
in writing within the statutory time limits or advise that the decision will be 

Page 21



E:\moderngov\data\AgendaItemDocs\5\0\8\AI00023805\$pvr3z3hf.rtf

released in writing with reasons within the statutory time limit, in this instance, 5 
working days.

PLEASE NOTE:

 Where the Sub-Committee considers it necessary to do so, it may vary this 
procedure.

 In circumstances where a party fails to attend the Committee will consider 
whether to proceed in absence. Should a matter be deferred the deferral 
notice will state that the matter may proceed in a party’s absence on the next 
occasion. In deciding whether to proceed all notices, communications and 
representations will be considered.

 Only in exceptional circumstances will the Committee take into account any 
additional late documentary or other information produced by an existing party 
in support of their application/representation.  This will be at the discretion of 
the Chair and with the agreement of all the other parties.  No new 
representations will be allowed at the hearing.

 The hearing will take the form of a discussion and parties will be able to ask 
questions as set out above. However, formal cross examination will be 
discouraged.

 The Authority will disregard any information or representation given by a party 
which is not relevant to the Application and the Licensing Act 2003.

  Where there is more than one party making relevant representations the time 
allocated will be split between those parties.

 Where several parties are making the same or similar representations it is 
suggested that one representative is appointed to avoid duplication and make 
efficient use of the allocated time. 

 Where an objection is made by an association or residents group, a duly 
authorised person – as notified to the Licensing Authority – may speak on 
behalf of that association or group. 

 The Chair may request that persons behaving in a disruptive manner should 
leave the hearing and their return refused, or allowed subject to conditions.  
An excluded person is however, entitled to submit the information they would 
have been entitled to present had they not been excluded.

Bath & North East Somerset Council is committed to taking decisions in an 
honest, accountable and transparent fashion. On occasion however, it may be 
necessary to exclude members of the press and public pursuant to the Local 
Government Act 1972 Schedule 12 (a). In those circumstances reasons for such 
decisions will be given.

Page 22



Page 23

Agenda Item 7



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING: 1ST MARCH 2019
	Exempt Minutes Public Pack, 01/03/2019 Licensing Sub-Committee

	6 LICENSING PROCEDURE
	Licensing act new or var procedure

	7 APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR THE BIG SAM JAM, EVENT FIELD, WOODBOROUGH MILL BARN, WOOLLARD BS39 4JT

